
 

 
 
 
Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 
 
 

 
 
 

AGENDA 
PUBLIC WORKS BOARD MEETING 

October 5, 2012 – 8:00 A.M. 

  
 
Agenda Item 
 

 
Action 

 
Page 

 
Time 

 

Meeting Location: Wenatchee Convention Center 121 North Wenatchee Avenue   Wenatchee, WA 98801 

Welcome and Introductions .................................................................................  ................  ........  ........... 8:00 
a) Call to Order 

 
HIGHLIGHT MEETING MATERIALS: John LaRocque .........................................  ................  ........  ........... 8:05 

a) Board Packet 
b) Handouts 

a. Vista View Memo 
b. 2014 PWTF Funding List Update 

 
1) ADMINISTRATION ...........................................................................................  ....................... 3 ........... 8:10 

a) Approve Agenda: Cecilia Gardener .................................................... Action ................. 1 
b) August 17 Meeting Minutes: Cecilia Gardener  .................................. Action ................. 5 
c) December Meeting: John LaRocque ...................................................... Verbal ...................   

 
2) CONTRACTING ...............................................................................................  ..................... 49 ........... 8:15 

a) Public Works Trust Fund .............................................................................  ..................... 51 ..................  
a. City of Bainbridge .................................................................. Action ............... 53 ..................  

b) Drinking Water State Revolving Fund ..........................................................  .........................  ..................  
a. Vista View: Isaac Huang/Myra Baldini .................................. Action ............... 55 ..................  
b. Firgrove Mutual, Inc.: Bruce Lund ........................................ Action ...................  ..................  

c) PWB Open Contracts: Bruce Lund ..............................................................  ..................... 57 ..................  
d) Other  ........................................................................................................  .........................  ..................  

 
3) FINANCING OPPORTUNITIES ........................................................................  ..................... 59 ........... 8:45 

a) PWTF 2014 Bypass of Lakeview & Grays Harbor PDA: Cecilia Gardener .......................  .................. 
  ......................................................................................................... Action ............... 61 ..................  

b) 2014 GMA Applicants: Cecilia Gardener............................................. Action ............... 63 ..................  
c) EWE Program Pool of Applicants Update: Steve Dunk ...............................   .................... 65 ..................  
d) Pre-Construction Program Pool of Applicants Update: Terry Dale ...............   .................... 69 ..................  

 
4) POLICY ............................................................................................................  ..................... 73 ........... 9:05 

a) Decision Packages Update: John LaRocque .......................................... Verbal ....................  ..................  
b) Health/Commerce/MOU Direction: John LaRocque .....................................  ..................... 75 ..................  

 
5) PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT/IMPLEMENTATION UPDATES  ........................  ................... 107 ........... 9:15 

a) 2014 PWTF Funding List Update: Ann Campbell ........................................  ................... 109 ..................  
 
BREAK  ..............................................................................................................  .........................  ........... 9:25 

 
6) INFORMATION AND OTHER ITEMS ...............................................................  ................... 111 ........... 9:45 

a) GMA Decision Package ........................................................................ Action ............. 113 ..................  
b) SW Regional Local Government Academy Update: Lynn Kohn ...................  ................... 115 ..................  
c) iPRMT Presentation: Scott Boettcher ..........................................................  .........................  ..................  
d) DOE Update: Jeff Nejedly ...................................................................... Verbal ....................  ..................  
e) DOH Update ........................................................................................... Verbal ....................  ..................  



  
 
Agenda Item 
 

 
Action 

 
Page 

 
Time 

 
f)     PWeB Presentation: Rodney Orr ...................................................................  .........................  ..................  
g) Work Session: Public Works Assistance Account .........................................  .........................  ..................  
 

Note:  Anticipated time of Adjournment is 11:00 a.m.  
 
 
NEXT MEETING SCHEDULED: November 2, 2012, at 8:30 a.m.– Department of Commerce, 1011 Plum Street SE 
Olympia, WA 98504-2525. Contact the Public Works Board at (360) 725-3151 for further information. 
This publication is available in alternative format upon request. Meetings sponsored by the Public Works Board shall be accessible 
to persons with disabilities. Accommodations may be arranged with 10 days notice to the Public Works Board at (360) 725-3151. 

2



TAB 1 

Administration 

3



 

4



 

 
Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 

PUBLIC WORKS BOARD MEETING NOTES 
August 17, 2012 

Department of Commerce (Olympia, WA) 

Board Members Present: Board Members Absent: Staff Members: 

Stan Finkelstein - Chair 

Frank Abart 

JC Baldwin 

Jerry Cummins 

Kathryn Gardow 

Tom Fitzsimmons 

Ed Hildreth 

Scott Hutsell 

Don Montfort 

Mark “Bubba” Scott 

Larry Waters 

 

Darwin Smith 

Steve Stuart 

 

Myra Baldini 

Ann Campbell 

Cindy Chavez 

Terry Dale 

Steve Dunk 

Janea Eddy 

Dawn Eychaner 

Christina Gagnon 

Cecilia Gardener 

Isaac Huang 

John LaRocque 

Matt Ojennus 

 

Guests Present: 

 

• Leonard Bauer, Department of Commerce 

• Blair Burroughs, Washington Association of 

Sewer & Water Districts 

• Karen Klocke, Department of Health 

• Karen Larkin, Department of Commerce 

• Chris McChord, Department of Health 

• Scott Merriman, Washington State 

Association of Counties 

• Jeff Nejedly, Department of Ecology 

• Cathi Read, Department of Commerce 

 

WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS 

a) Call to order: Stan Finkelstein called the meeting to order at 8:39 am. 

b) Introduction: John LaRocque introduced new Board member JC Baldwin. 

 

ADMINISTRATION 

a) Approve the agenda: Larry Waters moved to approve the agenda.  Ed Hildreth seconded. 

ACTION:  Motion Approved (10-0) (Abart, Baldwin, Cummins, Gardow, Fitzsimmons, Hildreth, 

Hutsell, Montfort, Scott, Waters) 

b) June 1 Meeting Minutes: Larry Waters moved to approve the June 1 meeting minutes.  Jerry 

Cummins seconded.  ACTION:  Motion Approved (10-0) (Abart, Baldwin, Cummins, Gardow, 

Fitzsimmons, Hildreth, Hutsell, Montfort, Scott, Waters) 

5



c) July 13 Meeting Minutes: Ed Hildreth moved to approve the July 13 meeting minutes.  Jerry 

Cummins seconded.  ACTION:  Motion Approved (10-0) (Abart, Baldwin, Cummins, Gardow, 

Fitzsimmons, Hildreth, Hutsell, Montfort, Scott, Waters) 

d) August 3 Meeting Minutes: Scott Hutsell moved to approve the August 3 meeting minutes.  

Larry Waters seconded.  ACTION:  Motion Approved (10-0) (Abart, Baldwin, Cummins, Gardow, 

Fitzsimmons, Hildreth, Hutsell, Montfort, Scott, Waters) 

e) PWB Member Committees:  John LaRocque presented the recommended Committee structure 

for members and staff (attachment 1).  Jerry Cummins moved to approve the committee 

structure.  Ed Hildreth seconded.  ACTION:  Motion Approved (10-0) (Abart, Baldwin, Cummins, 

Gardow, Fitzsimmons, Hildreth, Hutsell, Montfort, Scott, Waters) 

• Kathryn Gardow mentioned that the communication team will be working on the webpage.   

• John LaRocque stated that members are allowed to float between committees; the 

members on attachment 1 are the core members of the committees. 

f) Website Modification Proposal:  Kathryn Gardow presented the website proposal via 

PowerPoint to the Board (attachment 2). 

• Stan Finkelstein asked if there will be a link on the Commerce website to the PWB website. 

• Kathryn answered yes. 

• Don Montfort stated that he has a lot of respect for Rodney Orr and asked what his 

thoughts were in regards to the SharePoint website. 

• Rodney Orr stated that SharePoint reaches all the goals that staff has wanted for the last 

year.  Staff can update and enter information on the website, without going through him.  

Rodney also spoke regarding PWeB: PWeB is very client centric, there are 1600 users.  It is 

very strict in its workflow, it is meant to be since contracting is strict in its workflow.  It is 

probably time to start thinking about what we have and where we want to go. 

• Don Montfort asked who will be in charge of the design and executes what the Board wants 

on the website.  

• Rodney Orr answered that he hoped it would be the communication team and staff. 

• Don Montfort said the key is who the contractor is for PWeB upgrades, and how is that 

going to be accomplished. 

• Rodney stated in the past the Board did an RFP and had an interview process.  The 

contractor did some research of our clients and what the Board’s business was.  The 

contractor built a full fledge financial system.  Cindy Chavez can download information from 

AFRS, staff sends out our billing from it.  This system has allowed staff to do something no 

one else has done.  The client can go into PWeB and request the billings; they can update 

their information themselves. 

• John LaRocque stated this will require us to work with DIS/DES.   This will be a three way 

view to pick the contractor; PWB/Commerce/DES will be involved.  Staff will use the Board 

and stakeholder groups to see what kind of interface is wanted and needed.  The 

communication committee will be working on that.  This is only after the Legislature has 

approved the budget. 

• Bubba Scott asked about SharePoint compared to other projects, is it a good project or is it 

middle of the road. 

6



• Rodney Orr said that Commerce has been using it for awhile.  ChooseWashington.com was 

built with it.  Rodney Orr has looked at other content managers, some of them are free up 

to thousands of dollars, the content manager has to work with in Commerce’s system, and 

most systems would not easily do that. 

• Bubba Scott asked if SharePoint was user friendly for staff. 

• Rodney stated there will be a learning curve, as not all the staff has used SharePoint, there is 

training currently happening. 

• Scott Merriman asked if this will improve the loan/grant reporting requirements within 

Commerce. 

• Karen Larkin answered that the central loan/grant management system is not just for PWB, 

it is also for Commerce.  PWB and Rodney Orr will be the lead for the central system, but 

then Commerce’s other program will be able to access it afterwards.  So it should be easier 

for clients. 

• Scott Merriman stated that the Board should be explicit when approaching the Legislature, 

articulate that it is from a customer’s point of view, with that sum of money.  To minimize 

the reporting for the client, the administrating costs for reporting requirements is 

astronomical. 

• John LaRocque stated this is for capital projects, Capital Programs, PWB and DWSRF…a 

customer could look into one system, with one request and have all their information. 

• Rodney Orr offered to show Board members one on one, how PWeB works and what it 

offers. 

• Don Montfort asked if Rodney could do a demo/presentation of PWeB. 

• Rodney Orr commented that IACC might be a good place to do that as well. 

Kathryn Gardow moved to fund the PWeB modification.  Ed Hildreth. ACTION:  Motion 

Approved (10-0) (Abart, Baldwin, Cummins, Gardow, Fitzsimmons, Hildreth, Hutsell, Montfort, 

Scott, Waters) 

 

g) Growth Management Services Future (GMS) Funding Discussion:  Karen Larkin presented a 

proposal of Local Government Planning Assistance to the Board (attachment 3). 

• Don Montfort stated that water/sewer districts don’t plan under GMA, so he would be 

skeptical.  As for the Board it is generally capital facilities focused, the money they put into it 

would have to have that nexus.  They have done planning loans, but not grants, so there is 

some precedents.  The grants for comprehensive planning and land use, the proposal seems 

like a nibbling away at the PWTF, the Board is going to see plenty of that in the future, since 

the pot of money is so large.  If the Board starts down that road without some sense of 

parameters, the Board will find themselves in a situation with no control of the fund.  Don 

Montfort stated that he would need a firm sense of what is being asked for, as opposed to 

$3.5 million for cities and counties to plan.  Don Montfort asked if the program would be 

administered under GMS or PWB. 

• Karen Larkin stated that the thought was that the Board would approve an amount like they 

did for CERB and pass it to GMS.   

• Don Montfort asked if this proposal was for grants. 

7



• Karen Larkin answered yes. 

• Kathryn Gardow stated the Board could do this as low interest loans, no one has said the 

Board has to do this as grants. 

• Larry Waters said he is not sure of the need.  If it is just updating, the cost of that isn’t very 

high, unless they are very robust and expanding boarders and such. 

• Scott Merriman stated that he appreciates Karen Larkin trying to look for resources for 

Counties and Cities; his concern is dipping into the fund.  It is going to be a heavy lift and it 

should be made worthwhile.  PWB is already in the business of being the hammer for 

entities being in compliance, now the Board is going to take part of the fund to help them 

get in compliance.   

• Stan Finkelstein stated that the conversation was informational, and that a proposal will 

come back to the October meeting. 

FINANCING OPPORTUNITIES 

Cecilia Gardener presented the 2014 Public Works Trust Fund Construction Loan List Proposal 

(attachment 4). 

• John LaRocque stated that staff looked at several options to lower the total funding amount 

that would affect everyone, after talking to some clients this could make some projects 

unviable.  The larger projects could still get started and move forward even with the lower 

dollar amount of $13 million.  They can come back in the next cycle. 

• Stan Finkelstein asked if the Board accepts the $13 million threshold, is it the jurisdictions 

decision if they have multiple projects, where they make their reduction. 

• John LaRocque answered yes. 

• Kathryn Gardow asked about the 2015 minimum of $50 million in the fund to loan out. 

• John LaRocque answered the Board wanted to make sure that there was money for the 

2015 cycle.  Staff thought a minimum of $50 million was a good place to start.  Myra Baldini 

believes that it is low; it is closer to $75 million. 

• Frank Abart commented that he would like to focus on the minimum amount for fiscal year 

2015 that may be closer to $75 million or $100 million.  Frank Abart asked if there was any 

interest to reduce the amount for 2015 and fund the full amount of the 2014 list.  He would 

like to see the money on the street and be productive verses cutting the projects from $15 

million to $13 million. 

Lunch 11:05 

John LaRocque presented the updated predictive model (attachment 5).   

• John LaRocque answered that we can’t move money out from the $50 million pot of money 

per Myra Baldini’s model; it is possible that the draws could put us below the black line.  

Staff has the history of the account and how the money flows and where the account will be 

at the end of the biennium.  If the Board puts out more than that, it is over what staff is 

comfortable with. 

8



• Stan Finkelstein asked where the $50 million for the 2015 loan list would come from since 

this chart is showing $2.4 million available.  

• John LaRocque explained that this chart does not answer that question because this chart 

reflects balances as of June 30; this day has the lowest balances possible. John LaRocque 

clarified that the following day, July 1; the account is replenished with new funds.  

• Ed Hildreth asked if the account ever goes lower than that balance on June 30.  

• John LaRocque answered that it could dip lower depending on cash flow during the year, 

but that June 30 is the date that matters.  John LaRocque stated that there has been no 

defaults, 23 late payments, 33,000 payments made in 27 years.  The predictive model is 

used by the House and Senate, to predict what they can take from the fund as well. 

• Stan Finkelstein asked is there any potential that a jurisdiction, who asks for $2 million, will 

only use $1.2 million. 

• John LaRocque answered yes, however Isaac Huang has been contacting everyone and 

asking what their actual needs are.  The less they request, the more projects that could be 

funded.  Staff hasn’t even investigated how the Board can partner with Ecology, Health and 

USDA-RD.  Staff is not done getting the list dollar amount down.   

Jerry Cummins moved to: 

• Adopt a maximum loan amount per applicant of $13 million for the 2014 Construction Loan 

cycle.   

• Direct staff to do all things necessary and convenient to reduce the demand within the 2014 

Public Works Trust Fund Construction Loan List.   

• Adopt the 2014 Public Works Trust Fund Construction Loan list as modified by the Board. 

Ed Hildreth seconded.   

No Recusals 

• Stan Finkelstein 

• Kathryn Gardow 

• Tom Fitzsimmons 

• Bubba Scott 

• JC Baldwin 

• Scott Hutsell 

• Larry Waters 

• Darwin Smith 

 

Recusals 

• Frank Abart: City of Bellingham, Whatcom County 

• Don Montfort: Birch Bay Water District 

9



• Ed Hildreth: Thurston County PUD, City of Tumwater 

• Jerry Cummins: City of Walla Walla, Grays Harbor County – owns property in West Port 

• Steve Stuart: Clark County 

ACTION:  Motion Approved (10-0) (Abart, Baldwin, Cummins, Gardow, Fitzsimmons, Hildreth, Hutsell, 

Montfort, Scott, Waters) 

INFORMATION AND OTHER ITEMS 

a) 2012 DWSRF Recommended Loan List Batch 3  

Karen Klocke presented information on Rathbone Park Water Association (attachment 6). 

Kathryn Gardow moved approve the staff recommendation of funding the Northwood Park 

Water Association in the loan amount of $473,731.  Ed Hildreth seconded.   ACTION:  Motion 

Approved (10-0) (Abart, Baldwin, Cummins, Gardow, Fitzsimmons, Hildreth, Hutsell, Montfort, 

Scott, Waters) 

b) 2013 Policy Bill – Revisions to RCW 43.155 

Stan Finkelstein discussed a meeting with Steve Stuart, Leonard Bauer, Karen Larkin and Jim 

Justin regarding the GMA portion of the 2013 policy bill.  It was paired back in this discussion.  

The new language makes no changes to the Board’s existing statute other than aligning the 

GMA requirements to require jurisdictions planning under GMA to be in compliance at the time 

of contract execution rather than at the time of application.   

Kathryn moved to approve the staff recommendation that the Board adopt the changes to 

Section 10 of the draft policy bill and approve it’s submission to the Governor for consideration 

during the 2013 Legislative session.  Larry Waters seconded.  ACTION:  Motion Approved (10-0) 

(Abart, Baldwin, Cummins, Gardow, Fitzsimmons, Hildreth, Hutsell, Montfort, Scott, Waters) 

Meeting adjourned at 12:08 pm. 

10



11



 

12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



 

24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



 

44



45



 

46



47



 

48



TAB 2 

Contracting 

49



 

50



 

DATE:  September 17, 2012 
 
TO:  Public Works Board 
 
FROM:  Bruce Lund, CAU Managing Director 
 
SUBJECT: Project Completion Extension Requests 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends extending the contract project completion dates as follows:  
 

Program 
 

Client Contract No. Project 
Loan/Grant 

Amount 
Available to 

Draw  

Original 
Closeout 

Date  

Current 
Closeou

t Date 

Proposed 
Closeout 

Date 
DWSRF. Firgrove 

Mutual, Inc. 
DP09-952-031 Zone 2 

Reservoir 
Upgrade 

$3,030,0000 $303,000 9/22/12 9/22/12 3/22/13 

Reason for Extension Request:  Delays due to weather. Client needs additional time to complete punch list items.  
Project is 98% complete. 
 
PWTF Pre-
Construction 

City of  
Bainbridge 

Island 

PR08-951-104 Eagle Harbor  $425,000 $280,000 11/24/10 11/24/12 6/30/2013 

Reason for Extension Request:  Residents at a public meeting requested the City to look at an alternate route for 
sewer replacement lines.  Additional time is needed to research suggested alternative and revise scope of work.  
Project 50% complete. 

 

 
BACKGROUND 
The clients have requested extensions to their project completion dates. Staff evaluated the requests through a staff peer 
review process. DOH has been consulted and agrees with extending the DWSRF projects. 

 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

October 5, 2012 
Board meeting  

 

51



 

52



 
Date: September 19, 2012 
 
To: Public Works Board 
 
From: Bruce Lund, CAU Managing Director 
 
Subject: The City of Bainbridge Island request to change the loan term for  

Pre-Construction loan PR08-951-104 – Eagle Harbor Beach Mains Rehabilitation Project formerly 
known as the Point Monroe/Lafayette Sewer LID Project 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends granting the City of Bainbridge Island’s request to convert Pre-Construction loan number 
PR08-951-104 to a 20-year loan term by making one policy exception to the Public Works Board’s (Board)  
Pre-Construction Loan Term Conversion policy: 
 

1. Waive the requirement to request consideration for term conversion prior to the first principal 
payment. 
 

 
POLICY: 
In February 1998 the Public Works Board (Board) adopted a policy allowing pre-construction loan borrowers to 
petition to have their pre-construction loan term converted from five (5) years to twenty (20) years if full 
construction funding for the project is secured prior to the borrower making a first principal payment on the 
loan. 
 
 
REQUEST: 
The City of Bainbridge Island executed a Pre-Construction loan for $425,000 with the Board on          
November 24, 2008. 
 
Currently, the City of Bainbridge Island has $280,000 remaining contract balance to request. 
 
The City of Bainbridge Island has made one payment as of July 1, 2012: 

• July 1, 2012:  $ 72,759.79    ($72,500.00 principal; $259.79 interest) 
 
On April 23, 2012, the legislature approved the Capital Budget for the Public Works Assistance Account Loan 
List, which included this project and secured 100% funding for this project’s construction element. 
 
The City of Bainbridge Island requests an exception to the existing loan term policy and allow for conversion of 
the loan term to twenty (20) years. 
 
Extending the loan term to 20 years will: 

• Reduce principal payments to $22,031.25 for 16 years. 
• Increase the total interest paid to the Public Works Assistance Account  

from $1,555.62 to $14,774.37. 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

October 5, 2012 
Board Meeting 

53



 

54



PLACEHOLDER 

 

DWSRF Vista View  

55



 

56



 

 
DATE: September 24, 2012 
 
TO: Public Works Board 
 
FROM: Bruce Lund, CAU Managing Director 
 
SUBJECT: CAU Contract Status Report 
 
 
Beginning with the October meeting, we are initiating a quarterly report to the Public Works Board that provides 
a snapshot of some of the common activities that CAU staff have carried out over the previous quarter.  We 
hope this will give you a better understanding of the work that occurs after the contract is executed and while 
the projects are underway. 
 
Number of Contracts Received from PWB from 7/1/2012 – 9/24/2012 
 
PWTF      36 
DWSRF     20 
Other PWB Programs      4 
Total       60 
 
Number of Contracts in Open Status as of 9/24/2012 
 
PWTF     150 
DWSRF    130 
Other PWB Programs     14 
Total      294 
 
Number of Projects Completed 7/1/2012 - 9/24/2012 
 
PWTF        4 
DWSRF       2 
Other PWB Programs       2 
Total        8 
 
Dollars distributed to Clients 7/1/2012 - 9/24/2012 
 
PWTF    $18,878,381 
DWSRF   $  6,449,519 
Other PWB Programs  $     917,647 
Total    $26,245,547 
 
CAU Staff Observations: 
 

• All ARRA construction is complete.  The City of Seattle and the City of Tacoma are receiving additional 
loan dollars from deobligated funds. 

 
• We are hearing from our clients that construction bids are coming in higher than estimated. 

 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

October 5, 2012 
Board meeting  

 

57



 

58



TAB 3 

Financing Opportunities 

59



 

60



 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

October 5, 2012 
Board Meeting 

 
DATE:  September 27, 2012 
 
TO:  Public Works Board 
 
FROM:  Cecilia Gardener, Policy & Program Development Manager 
   
 
SUBJECT: 2014 PWTF Construction Applicant Recommended for By-Pass 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
At the August 17th Public Works Board Meeting, the Board approved the list of projects to move 
forward through the Legislative process.  A formal action to by-pass two applicants was not taken.   
 
There were two applicants that did not perform well in the managerial and financial review process.  
List below are those applicants and the reasons for the staff recommendation. 
 

Applicant Project Description Loan Request 
Grays Harbor PDA Hookup to Elma’s newly-expanded municipal wastewater treatment 

plant (WWTP) $2,000,000 

Lakeview Sewer District Wastewater Improvement Project includes the rehabilitation of the 
wastewater ponds as well as improvements to the collection system $350,000 

 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends bypassing Grays Harbor PDA, and Lakeview Sewer District’s 2014 request for 
funding due to managerial and/or financial capacity issues.  

61



 

62



 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

October 5, 2012 
Board Meeting 

 
DATE:  September 27, 2012 
 
TO:  Public Works Board 
 
FROM:  Cecilia Gardener, Policy & Program Development Manager 
   
 
SUBJECT: 2014 GMA Applicants to be included in funding list pending policy bill passage 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
RCW 43.155.070(2) specifies that applicants for Public Works Trust Fund financing are considered 
ineligible if they are out of conformance with the Growth Management Act at the time of application.  
This year, there were eight applicants with eighteen projects requesting $79,968,750 (does not 
include loan limit of $13 million adjustment) that were identified as ineligible due to this requirement.   
 
The policy bill developed by the Board modifies this requirement regarding the timeframe an applicant 
must be in conformance.  The modification requires that applicants be in conformance at time of 
contract instead of time of application.  This gives applicants an additional 12-18 months to achieve 
conformance.  This modification would bring the Board’s requirements in line with the Department of 
Ecology (ECY) requirement.  Historically,   ECY has not excluded any applicants due to this 
requirement, all achieved conformance prior to contract execution. 
 
If the Board approves the inclusion of these applicants in the funding pool, they  would be included in 
the loan list bill as a separate section that would only be applicable if the policy bill passes and is 
signed into law by the Governor.  
 
The total additional resources needed after adjustments (reduced to a maximum of $13 million with 
client’s identifying how to adjust their loan requests to meet the cap) would be approximately 
$35,837,750. 
 
 

 Applicant Project Title Amount 
Requested 

Modified  
Request 

Total Project 
Cost System type county Comments 

1 Grandview, 
City of 

Wastewater Pumping 
Facility Improvements $1,968,000 $1,968,000 $1,968,000 Sanitary  

Sewer Yakima 

 

2 Kitsap County 

Bucklin Hill Rd. Estuary 
Enhancement & 
Bridge Construction 
Project 

$13,000,000 

$13,000,000 

$16,161,000 Road/Street/ 
Bridge Kitsap 

Need GHG; 
Reduce loan 
amounts total to 
$13M 

Central Kitsap 
Treatment Plant 
Reclamation & Reuse  

$29,500,000 $30,000,000 Sanitary  
Sewer Kitsap 

Need GHG; 
Reduce loan 
amounts total to 
$13M 

3 Kittitas County Storm Water 
Infiltration System $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 Storm  

Water Kittitas 

 
4 Moxee, City of 

Charron Well & 
Transmission Main 
Project 

$811,000 $811,000 $811,000 Domestic  
Water Yakima 

 
5 Selah, City of 2014 Water System 

Improvements $1,307,000 $1,307,000 $1,307,000 Domestic  
Water Yakima 

 
63



 Applicant Project Title Amount 
Requested 

Modified  
Request 

Total Project 
Cost System type county Comments 

6 Snohomish 
County 

Bridge 603 (Trout 
Creek) Replacement $1,270,000 

$13,000,000 

$1,270,000 Road/Street/ 
Bridge Snohomish 

Reduce loan 
amounts total to 
$13M 

52nd Ave W 
(Lynnwood City limits 
to 148th St SW) 

$7,646,000 $11,053,002 Road/Street/ 
Bridge Snohomish 

Reduce loan 
amounts total to 
$13M 

North Road Corridor 
Improvements: SR 524 
to 164th Street SW 

$6,450,000 $17,852,689 Road/Street/ 
Bridge Snohomish 

Reduce loan 
amounts total to 
$13M 

Bridge 311 (Portage 
Creek) Replacement $1,755,000 $1,755,000 Road/Street/ 

Bridge Snohomish 
Reduce loan 
amounts total to 
$13M 

Bridge 604 (Giles 
Road) Replacement $1,755,000 $1,755,000 Road/Street/ 

Bridge Snohomish 
Reduce loan 
amounts total to 
$13M 

Bridge 565 (Everett 
Creek) Replacement $1,755,000 $1,755,000 Road/Street/ 

Bridge Snohomish 
Reduce loan 
amounts total to 
$13M 

Smith Island Setback 
Levee $7,000,000 $15,000,000 Storm  

Water Snohomish 
Reduce loan 
amounts total to 
$13M 

7 Snoqualmie, 
City of 

Water Reclamation 
Standby Generator $1,345,000 $1,345,000 $1,345,000 Sanitary 

 Sewer King 

 Water Reclamation 
Facility Ultraviolet 
Disinfection System 
Upgrades 

$1,114,000 $1,114,000 $1,114,000 Sanitary 
 Sewer King 

 Sewage Lift Station 2 
Upgrades $858,750 $858,750 $858,750 Sanitary 

 Sewer King 

 Water Facility 
Generators $1,434,000 $1,434,000 $1,434,000 Domestic 

 Water King 

 
8 Union Gap, 

City of 
2014 Water Meter 
Improvements $750,000 $750,000 $750,000 Domestic 

 Water Yakima 

    $79,968,750  $35,837,750  $106,439,441     
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends submitting the eight jurisdictions and their projects through the application review 
process consisting of project, managerial, and financial review. 
 
Upon successful completion of the review processes, adding the applicants and their projects as a 
separate section to the loan list bill, contingent on passage of the GMA requirement adjustment in the 
policy bill.   
 
Staff continues working with our partners and clients to reduce the overall loan requests while 
maximizing all funding resources.   

 

64



 

 
Date: September 19, 2012 
 
To: Public Works Board 
 
From: Steve Dunk, PWB Customer Service Representative 
 
Subject:  Energy/Water Efficiency Pool of Applicants 
 
On September 14, 2012, the Energy/Water Efficiency Loan application period closed.  The Board 
received 12 applications totaling $5,605,966 in requests, with $4,850,000 to give out for 
projects.  There is a six-person review committee of which, two people are energy experts that will be 
ranking the 12 applications.  The committee will meet twice before the November 2, 2012 Board 
meeting and will present the Board with a recommended list for their approval.       
 
 
 

 

Washington State 

Public Works Board 
October 5, 2012 
Board Meeting 

65



 

66



Jurisdiction Client Type Project Type Project Title

Loan 

Amount Project Cost

City of Enumclaw City Water 2 MG Reservoir Joint Resealing $200,000 $200,000

Spokane County County Building Chiller and Controls Upgrades -- Spokane County Community Services Building $639,041 $692,147

City of Longview City Water Longview Energy & Water Retrofit $1,000,000 $3,910,866

Tukwila City Swimming Pool Tukwila Pool Energy Project $1,000,000 $1,700,784

Columbia County County Building Youth Building $500,000 $545,000

City of Montesano City Waste Water WWPT Energy Savings Upgrade $53,000 $90,500

City of Lynden City Waste Water City of Lynden Waste Water Treatment Plant Upgrades $550,000 $1,542,000

King County County Waste Water King County's South Plant Agitation Blower Replacement $668,215 $1,000,000

City of Ilwaco City Waste Water WWTP Energy Efficiency Improvements $240,700 $240,700

City of Sequim City Waste Water Aerobic Digester Energy Efficiency Improvements $520,000 $520,000

City of Goldendale City Building Goldendale Building Energy Upgrades $162,735 $179,000

City of Kittitas City Building/Library Kittitas Library/Community Cneter Energy Upgrades $72,275 $75,200

$5,605,966 $10,696,197

67



 

68



 
Date: September 19, 2012 
 
To: Public Works Board 
 
From: Terry Dale, PWB Customer Service Representative 
 
Subject:  Pre-Con Program Pool of Applicants 
 
Received 

• 10 projects have been submitted for 9 applicants, 1 applicant submitted two projects.   
• PWB funds requested  $   2,085,179.00,  
• Total project funding $      5,120,779.00 

 
Next Steps: 

• Threshold review completed by week of October 1.   
• Project ranking to begin week of September 24 and completed after IACC.   
• Projects to be prepared for contracts to be presented to Public Works Board at its November 

meeting. 
 
 
 

 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

October 5, 2012 
Board Meeting 

69



 

70



Applicant Jurisdiction 
Type

Project Title System Type  Amount 
Asked 

 Total 
Project $$ 

Beacon Hill Water and Sewer District District Grandview Pump Station Wastewater  $     250,000  $    250,000 

Crystal Springs Water District District Water main replacement Water  $       15,000  $      16,000 
Douglas County Sewer District No. 1 District NW Empire Avenue Gravity Sewer Extension Wastewater  $     136,179  $    136,179 

Douglas County Sewer District No. 1 District North Baker Avenue Gravity Sewer Extension Wastewater  $       54,000  $      54,000 

City of Everson City  Wastewater Treatment Plant Upgrades Wastewater  $     300,000  $    300,000 
City of Mountlake Terrace City  Gateway Boulevard Project Street, Road  $     300,000  $    850,000 
Pacific City Stewart Rd/Thornton Ave Improvements Street, Road  $     300,000  $ 1,986,600 
City of Quincy City City of Quincy Reclamation and Reuse Utility, Phase 3 Wastewater  $     300,000  $    850,000 

Town of Creston Town Creston Reservoir Replacement Project Water  $     130,000  $    130,000 

King County - Wastewater 
Treatment Division

County West Point Treatment Plant Dewatering Centrifuge 
Replacement

Wastewater  $     300,000  $    548,000 

District = 3 Wastewater = 6
City = 4 Water = 2
County = 1 Street, Road = 2
Town = 1

Totals  $ 2,085,179  $5,120,779 

Pre-Construction Tracking System

71



 

72



TAB 4 

Policy 

73



 

74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



TAB 5 

Program Development/ 

Implementation and 

Updates 

107



 

108



PLACEHOLDER 

 

2014 PWTF Funding List Update 

109



 

110



TAB 6 

Information and  

Other Items 

111



 

112



 

 
Date: October 5, 2012 
 
To: Public Works Board 
 
From: Leonard Bauer, GMS Managing Director 
 
Subject:  Funding For Local Government Planning Assistance 
 
 
Problem Statement 
 
Despite the recent economic recession, the state’s population is expected to grow by more than 2 
million by 2025.  That’s comparable to adding three new cities the size of Seattle to our state. 
Communities with a clear plan for how to accommodate that new growth are more attractive to private 
investment, which in turn creates jobs and increases the quality of life in that community.   
Due to significant shortages in general funds, many local governments currently lack resources to 
update or implement their comprehensive plans. Out-of-date local plans negatively affect: 

• coordinated provision of public infrastructure and services through capital facilities plans,  

• protection of the natural environment, and 

• the predictability needed to encourage private investment in those communities.    

 
Outlook for 2013-2015 Biennium 
 
State law requires cities and counties to update their comprehensive plans and development 
regulations every eight years.  The next updates must begin in the 2013-15 biennium.  
 
Most cities and counties will not see an increase in their general fund next biennium. 
 
In the past, state grants have provided local governments with about 1/3 of their costs to update their 
plans and regulations, along with technical assistance to each city and county.   
 
Carry-forward state general funds for local planning grants and technical assistance next biennium 
are significantly reduced from past levels.  They will only support: 

o Local grants to fund 2-3% of local government costs for updates of plans and 

regulations 

o About 30% of the technical assistance service level provided in the past.   

 
Proposed Solution 
 
Cities and counties need additional revenue sources for planning activities that support the economic 
recovery.  A solution will likely come from a combination of: 

• Continued state grant funding and technical assistance to partially support plan/regulation 

updates.  This proposal (on reverse side) would combine state-general funds with stormwater 

capital funds and the Public Works Assistance Account. 

 

Washington State 

Public Works Board 
October 5, 2012 
Board Meeting 

113



 

• Enabling other local revenues, such as increased flexibility to use local permit revenues to 

partially support planning, and efficiency improvements in local planning and permitting 

processes. Commerce continues to explore these options with stakeholders.  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
    
 
 
 

State - General 

Fund

$4.5 million

(41%)

Stormwater 

Capital Funds

$3.25 million

(29.5%)

Public Works 

Assistance 

Account

$3.25 million

(29.5%)

Proposed Local Government Planning 

Assistance - Revenue

Local Planning 

Grants

$6.3 million

(57%)

Technical 

Assistance

$4.7 million

(43%)

Proposed Local Government Planning 

Assistance - Expenditures

114



 

 
Date: October 5, 2012 
 
To: Public Works Board 
 
From: Lynn Kohn, PWB Customer Service Representative 
 
Subject:  Southwest Regional Local Government Academy 
 
Sponsored by the Public Works Board, co-sponsored by: (to be named) 
 
Purpose: 
Leaders from counties, cities, towns, and special purpose districts located in or serving Clark, Cowlitz, 
Wahkiakum or Skamania counties will be invited to attend a day-long academy on Wednesday, 
November 28, 2012.  The purpose of the academy is to share information about the changing 
political, demographic and economic conditions in the region, exchange ideas on how to respond to 
those conditions, and develop an inter-governmental action plan or plans to resolve issues or take 
advantage of opportunities. 
Date and Location: 
Wednesday, November 28, 2012, 8:30 – 4:00 at Corporate Learning Center - Clark College, 18700 
SE Mill Plain Blvd., Vancouver 
 
Invitees:  
Counties, cities, towns, special districts, school districts, state agencies, and associations 
 
Agenda:  
Welcome and Introductions – Steve Stuart, Clark County Commissioner and PWB member   
 
Morning session  

A. National/state/local political environment  – impacts to population,  economy, politics (Stan 
Finkelstein, PWB Chair,  Wolfgang Opitz, Assistant Treasurer, State Treasurer’s Office, Jim 
Justin, Director of Legislative & External Affairs, OFM, all committed) 

B. Break out into work groups to brainstorm issues of concern and develop Action Plans 
(facilitated by agency experts).  Action Plans can be used to influence public policy at the 
state, regional, and local levels. 

 
Networking lunch on-site 
 
Afternoon session  

A. Present Action Plans to full group 
    

B. Discussion on the Interrelationships of funding among local governments and special districts. 
Glenn Olson, Deputy Clark County Administrator (committed), John Peterson with the Clark 
Regional Wastewater District (potential) 

 

 

Washington State 

Public Works Board 
October 5, 2012 
Board Meeting 

115



 

C. Break-out session on topics of concern (to be determined, suggestions below) 
 

D. Group sharing and close 
 
 
Possible topics  

• Flow of finances:  
> State auditor – what finances are available and who gets it 

> County finance officer – how it works 

> County Commissioner – how decisions are made 

> Locals – how it works locally 

• Water rights 

• Columbia River Crossing 

• Oregon and Washington issues 

• Others to be determined from talking with folks from all 4 counties 

 
 

116


	2.a Bainbridge Island PreCon term conversion request.pdf
	In February 1998 the Public Works Board (Board) adopted a policy allowing pre-construction loan borrowers to petition to have their pre-construction loan term converted from five (5) years to twenty (20) years if full construction funding for the proj...
	REQUEST:
	The City of Bainbridge Island executed a Pre-Construction loan for $425,000 with the Board on          November 24, 2008.
	Currently, the City of Bainbridge Island has $280,000 remaining contract balance to request.
	The City of Bainbridge Island has made one payment as of July 1, 2012:
	 July 1, 2012:  $ 72,759.79    ($72,500.00 principal; $259.79 interest)
	On April 23, 2012, the legislature approved the Capital Budget for the Public Works Assistance Account Loan List, which included this project and secured 100% funding for this project’s construction element.
	The City of Bainbridge Island requests an exception to the existing loan term policy and allow for conversion of the loan term to twenty (20) years.
	Extending the loan term to 20 years will:
	 Reduce principal payments to $22,031.25 for 16 years.
	 Increase the total interest paid to the Public Works Assistance Account  from $1,555.62 to $14,774.37.

	3.e Pre-Con Applicant Pool.pdf
	Sheet1




